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additional evidence and shows to the satisfac-
tion of the court that the additional evidence is 
material and that there were reasonable grounds 
for the failure to adduce the evidence in the 
hearing before the Authority, or its designee, 
the court may order the additional evidence to 
be taken before the Authority, or its designee, 
and to be made a part of the record. The Author-
ity may modify its findings as to the facts, or 
make new findings by reason of additional evi-
dence so taken and filed. The Authority shall 
file its modified or new findings, which, with re-
spect to questions of fact, if supported by sub-
stantial evidence on the record considered as a 
whole, shall be conclusive. The Authority shall 
file its recommendations, if any, for the modi-
fication or setting aside of its original order. 
Upon the filing of the record with the court, the 
jurisdiction of the court shall be exclusive and 
its judgment and decree shall be final, except 
that the judgment and decree shall be subject to 
review by the Supreme Court of the United 
States upon writ of certiorari or certification as 
provided in section 1254 of title 28. 

(d) The Authority may, upon issuance of a 
complaint as provided in section 7118 of this 
title charging that any person has engaged in or 
is engaging in an unfair labor practice, petition 
any United States district court within any dis-
trict in which the unfair labor practice in ques-
tion is alleged to have occurred or in which such 
person resides or transacts business for appro-
priate temporary relief (including a restraining 
order). Upon the filing of the petition, the court 
shall cause notice thereof to be served upon the 
person, and thereupon shall have jurisdiction to 
grant any temporary relief (including a tem-
porary restraining order) it considers just and 
proper. A court shall not grant any temporary 
relief under this section if it would interfere 
with the ability of the agency to carry out its 
essential functions or if the Authority fails to 
establish probable cause that an unfair labor 
practice is being committed. 

(Added Pub. L. 95–454, title VII, § 701, Oct. 13, 
1978, 92 Stat. 1213.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 90 days after Oct. 13, 1978, see sec-
tion 907 of Pub. L. 95–454, set out as an Effective Date 
of 1978 Amendment note under section 1101 of this title. 

PARTIAL SUSPENSION OF FEDERAL SERVICE LABOR- 
MANAGEMENT RELATIONS 

Subsec. (b) of this section suspended with respect to 
any matter which substantially impairs the implemen-
tation by the United States Forces of any treaty or 
agreement, including any minutes or understandings 
thereto, between the United States and the Govern-
ment of the host nation, see section 1(a) of Ex. Ord. No. 
12391, Nov. 4, 1982, 47 F.R. 50457, set out as a note under 
section 7103 of this title. 

SUBCHAPTER IV—ADMINISTRATIVE AND 
OTHER PROVISIONS 

§ 7131. Official time 

(a) Any employee representing an exclusive 
representative in the negotiation of a collective 
bargaining agreement under this chapter shall 
be authorized official time for such purposes, in-
cluding attendance at impasse proceeding, dur-

ing the time the employee otherwise would be in 
a duty status. The number of employees for 
whom official time is authorized under this sub-
section shall not exceed the number of individ-
uals designated as representing the agency for 
such purposes. 

(b) Any activities performed by any employee 
relating to the internal business of a labor orga-
nization (including the solicitation of member-
ship, elections of labor organization officials, 
and collection of dues) shall be performed during 
the time the employee is in a non-duty status. 

(c) Except as provided in subsection (a) of this 
section, the Authority shall determine whether 
any employee participating for, or on behalf of, 
a labor organization in any phase of proceedings 
before the Authority shall be authorized official 
time for such purpose during the time the em-
ployee otherwise would be in a duty status. 

(d) Except as provided in the preceding sub-
sections of this section— 

(1) any employee representing an exclusive 
representative, or 

(2) in connection with any other matter cov-
ered by this chapter, any employee in an ap-
propriate unit represented by an exclusive rep-
resentative, 

shall be granted official time in any amount the 
agency and the exclusive representative in-
volved agree to be reasonable, necessary, and in 
the public interest. 

(Added Pub. L. 95–454, title VII, § 701, Oct. 13, 
1978, 92 Stat. 1214.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 90 days after Oct. 13, 1978, see sec-
tion 907 of Pub. L. 95–454, set out as an Effective Date 
of 1978 Amendment note under section 1101 of this title. 

EX. ORD. NO. 13837. ENSURING TRANSPARENCY, ACCOUNT-
ABILITY, AND EFFICIENCY IN TAXPAYER-FUNDED UNION 
TIME USE 

Ex. Ord. No. 13837, May 25, 2018, 83 F.R. 25335, pro-
vided: 

By the authority vested in me as President by the 
Constitution and the laws of the United States of 
America, including section 301 of title 3, United States 
Code, and section 7301 of title 5, United States Code, 
and to ensure the effective functioning of the executive 
branch, it is hereby ordered as follows: 

SECTION 1. Purpose. An effective and efficient govern-
ment keeps careful track of how it spends the tax-
payers’ money and eliminates unnecessary, inefficient, 
or unreasonable expenditures. To advance this policy, 
executive branch employees should spend their duty 
hours performing the work of the Federal Government 
and serving the public. 

Federal law allows Federal employees to represent 
labor organizations and perform other non-agency busi-
ness while being paid by American taxpayers (taxpayer- 
funded union time). The Congress, however, has also in-
structed the executive branch to interpret the law in a 
manner consistent with the requirements of an effec-
tive and efficient government. 

To that end, agencies should ensure that taxpayer- 
funded union time is used efficiently and authorized in 
amounts that are reasonable, necessary, and in the 
public interest. Federal employees should spend the 
clear majority of their duty hours working for the pub-
lic. No agency should pay for Federal labor organiza-
tions’ expenses, except where required by law. Agencies 
should eliminate unrestricted grants of taxpayer-fund-
ed union time and instead require employees to obtain 
specific authorization before using such time. Agencies 
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should also monitor use of taxpayer-funded union time, 
ensure it is used only for authorized purposes, and 
make information regarding its use readily available to 
the public. 

SEC. 2. Definitions. For purposes of this order, the fol-
lowing definitions shall apply: 

(a) Except for purposes of section 4 of this order, 
‘‘agency’’ has the meaning given the term in section 
7103(a)(3) of title 5, United States Code, but includes 
only executive agencies. For purposes of section 4 of 
this order, ‘‘agency’’ has the meaning given to ‘‘Execu-
tive agency’’ in section 105 of title 5, United States 
Code, but excludes the Government Accountability Of-
fice. 

(b) ‘‘Agency business’’ shall mean work performed by 
Federal employees, including detailees or assignees, on 
behalf of an agency, but does not include work per-
formed on taxpayer-funded union time. 

(c) ‘‘Bargaining unit’’ shall mean a group of employ-
ees represented by an exclusive representative in an ap-
propriate unit for collective bargaining under sub-
chapter II of chapter 71 of title 5, United States Code 
[5 U.S.C. 7111 et seq.]. 

(d) ‘‘Discounted use of government property’’ means 
charging less to use government property than the 
value of the use of such property, as determined by the 
General Services Administration, where applicable, or 
otherwise by the generally prevailing commercial cost 
of using such property. 

(e) ‘‘Employee’’ has the meaning given the term in 
section 7103(a)(2) of title 5, United States Code, except 
for purposes of section 4 of this order, in which case it 
means an individual employed in an ‘‘Executive agen-
cy,’’ according to the meaning given that term in sec-
tion 105 of title 5, United States Code, but excluding 
the Government Accountability Office. 

(f) ‘‘Grievance’’ has the meaning given the term in 
section 7103(a)(9) of title 5, United States Code. 

(g) ‘‘Labor organization’’ has the meaning given the 
term in section 7103(a)(4) of title 5, United States Code. 

(h) ‘‘Paid time’’ shall mean time for which an em-
ployee is paid by the Federal Government, including 
both duty time, in which the employee performs agency 
business, and taxpayer-funded union time. It does not 
include time spent on paid or unpaid leave, or an em-
ployee’s off-duty hours. 

(i) ‘‘Taxpayer-funded union time’’ shall mean official 
time granted to an employee pursuant to section 7131 of 
title 5, United States Code. 

(j) ‘‘Union time rate’’ shall mean the total number of 
duty hours in the fiscal year that employees in a bar-
gaining unit used for taxpayer-funded union time, di-
vided by the number of employees in such bargaining 
unit. 

SEC. 3. Standards for Reasonable and Efficient Tax-

payer-Funded Union Time Usage. (a) No agency shall 
agree to authorize any amount of taxpayer-funded 
union time under section 7131(d) of title 5, United 
States Code, unless such time is reasonable, necessary, 
and in the public interest. Agreements authorizing tax-
payer-funded union time under section 7131(d) of title 5, 
United States Code, that would cause the union time 
rate in a bargaining unit to exceed 1 hour should, tak-
ing into account the size of the bargaining unit, and 
the amount of taxpayer-funded union time anticipated 
to be granted under sections 7131(a) and 7131(c) of title 
5, United States Code, ordinarily not be considered rea-
sonable, necessary, and in the public interest, or to sat-
isfy the ‘‘effective and efficient’’ goal set forth in sec-
tion 1 of this order and section 7101(b) of title 5, United 
States Code. Agencies shall commit the time and re-
sources necessary to strive for a negotiated union time 
rate of 1 hour or less, and to fulfill their obligation to 
bargain in good faith. 

(b)(i) If an agency agrees to authorize amounts of tax-
payer-funded union time under section 7131(d) of title 5, 
United States Code, that would cause the union time 
rate in a bargaining unit to exceed 1 hour (or proposes 
to the Federal Service Impasses Panel or an arbitrator 
engaging in interest arbitration an amount that would 

cause the union time rate in a bargaining unit to ex-
ceed 1 hour), the agency head shall report this agree-
ment or proposal to the President through the Director 
of the Office of Personnel Management (OPM Director) 
within 15 days of such an agreement or proposal. Such 
report shall explain why such expenditures are reason-
able, necessary, and in the public interest, describe the 
benefit (if any) the public will receive from the activi-
ties conducted by employees on such taxpayer-funded 
union time, and identify the total cost of such time to 
the agency. This reporting duty cannot be delegated. 

(ii) Each agency head shall require relevant subordi-
nate agency officials to inform the agency head 5 busi-
ness days in advance of presenting or accepting a pro-
posal that would result in a union time rate of greater 
than 1 hour for any bargaining unit, if the subordinate 
agency officials anticipate they will present or agree to 
such a provision. 

(iii) The requirements of this subsection shall not 
apply to a union time rate established pursuant to an 
order of the Federal Service Impasses Panel or an arbi-
trator engaging in interest arbitration, provided that 
the agency had proposed that the Impasses Panel or ar-
bitrator establish a union time rate of 1 hour or less. 

(c) Nothing in this section shall be construed to pro-
hibit any agency from authorizing taxpayer-funded 
union time as required under sections 7131(a) and 
7131(c) of title 5, United States Code, or to direct an 
agency to negotiate to include in a collective bargain-
ing agreement a term that precludes an agency from 
granting taxpayer-funded union time pursuant to those 
provisions. 

SEC. 4. Employee Conduct with Regard to Agency Time 

and Resources. (a) To ensure that Federal resources are 
used effectively and efficiently and in a manner con-
sistent with both the public interest and section 8 of 
this order, all employees shall adhere to the following 
requirements: 

(i) Employees may not engage in lobbying activities 
during paid time, except in their official capacities as 
an employee. 

(ii)(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) of this 
subsection, employees shall spend at least three-quar-
ters of their paid time, measured each fiscal year, per-
forming agency business or attending necessary train-
ing (as required by their agency), in order to ensure 
that they develop and maintain the skills necessary to 
perform their agency duties efficiently and effectively. 

(2) Employees who have spent one-quarter of their 
paid time in any fiscal year on non-agency business 
may continue to use taxpayer-funded union time in 
that fiscal year for purposes covered by sections [sic] 
7131(a) or 7131(c) of title 5, United States Code. 

(3) Any time in excess of one-quarter of an employ-
ee’s paid time used to perform non-agency business in 
a fiscal year shall count toward the limitation set 
forth in subparagraph (1) of this subsection in subse-
quent fiscal years. 
(iii) No employee, when acting on behalf of a Federal 

labor organization, may be permitted the free or dis-
counted use of government property or any other agen-
cy resources if such free or discounted use is not gener-
ally available for non-agency business by employees 
when acting on behalf of non-Federal organizations. 
Such property and resources include office or meeting 
space, reserved parking spaces, phones, computers, and 
computer systems. 

(iv) Employees may not be permitted reimbursement 
for expenses incurred performing non-agency business, 
unless required by law or regulation. 

(v)(1) Employees may not use taxpayer-funded union 
time to prepare or pursue grievances (including arbi-
tration of grievances) brought against an agency under 
procedures negotiated pursuant to section 7121 of title 
5, United States Code, except where such use is other-
wise authorized by law or regulation. 

(2) The prohibition in subparagraph (1) of this sub-
section does not apply to: 

(A) an employee using taxpayer-funded union time 
to prepare for, confer with an exclusive representa-
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tive regarding, or present a grievance brought on the 
employee’s own behalf; or to appear as a witness in 
any grievance proceeding; or 

(B) an employee using taxpayer-funded union time 
to challenge an adverse personnel action taken 
against the employee in retaliation for engaging in 
federally protected whistleblower activity, including 
for engaging in activity protected under section 
2302(b)(8) of title 5, United States Code, under section 
78u–6(h)(1) of title 15, United States Code [section 
21F(h)(1) of act June 6, 1934, ch. 404], under section 
3730(h) of title 31, United States Code, or under any 
other similar whistleblower law. 
(b) Employees may not use taxpayer-funded union 

time without advance written authorization from their 
agency, except where obtaining prior approval is 
deemed impracticable under regulations or guidance 
adopted pursuant to subsection (c) of this section. 

(c)(i) The requirements of this section shall become 
effective 45 days from the date of this order [May 25, 
2018]. The Office of Personnel Management (OPM) shall 
be responsible for administering the requirements of 
this section. Within 45 days of the date of this order, 
the OPM Director shall examine whether existing regu-
lations are consistent with the rules set forth in this 
section. If the regulations are not, the OPM Director 
shall propose for notice and public comment, as soon as 
practicable, appropriate regulations to clarify and as-
sist agencies in implementing these rules, consistent 
with applicable law. 

(ii) The head of each agency is responsible for ensur-
ing compliance by employees within such agency with 
the requirements of this section, to the extent consist-
ent with applicable law and existing collective bargain-
ing agreements. Each agency head shall examine 
whether existing regulations, policies, and practices 
are consistent with the rules set forth in this section. 
If they are not, the agency head shall take all appro-
priate steps consistent with applicable law to bring 
them into compliance with this section as soon as prac-
ticable. 

(e) [sic] Nothing in this order shall be construed to 
prohibit agencies from permitting employees to take 
unpaid leave to perform representational activities 
under chapter 71 of title 5, United States Code [5 U.S.C. 
7101 et seq.], including for purposes covered by section 
7121(b)(1)(C) of title 5, United States Code. 

SEC. 5. Preventing Unlawful or Unauthorized Expendi-

tures. (a) Any employee who uses taxpayer-funded 
union time without advance written agency authoriza-
tion required by section 4(b) of this order, or for pur-
poses not specifically authorized by the agency, shall 
be considered absent without leave and subject to ap-
propriate disciplinary action. Repeated misuse of tax-
payer-funded union time may constitute serious mis-
conduct that impairs the efficiency of the Federal serv-
ice. In such instances, agencies shall take appropriate 
disciplinary action to address such misconduct. 

(b) As soon as practicable, but not later than 180 days 
from the date of this order, to the extent permitted by 
law, each agency shall develop and implement a proce-
dure governing the authorization of taxpayer-funded 
union time under section 4(b) of this order. Such proce-
dure shall, at a minimum, require a requesting em-
ployee to specify the number of taxpayer-funded union 
time hours to be used and the specific purposes for 
which such time will be used, providing sufficient de-
tail to identify the tasks the employee will undertake. 
That procedure shall also allow the authorizing official 
to assess whether it is reasonable and necessary to 
grant such amount of time to accomplish such tasks. 
For continuing or ongoing requests, each agency shall 
require requests for authorization renewals to be sub-
mitted not less than once per pay period. Each agency 
shall further require separate advance authorization 
for any use of taxpayer-funded union time in excess of 
previously authorized hours or for purposes for which 
such time was not previously authorized. 

(c) As soon as practicable, but not later than 180 days 
from the date of this order, each agency shall develop 

and implement a system to monitor the use of tax-
payer-funded union time to ensure that it is used only 
for authorized purposes, and that it is not used con-
trary to law or regulation. In developing these systems, 
each agency shall give special attention to ensuring 
taxpayer-funded union time is not used for: 

(i) internal union business in violation of section 
7131(b) of title 5, United States Code; 

(ii) lobbying activities in violation of section 1913 of 
title 18, United States Code, or in violation of section 
4(a)(i) of this order; or 

(iii) political activities in violation of subchapter III 
of chapter 73 of title 5, United States Code [5 U.S.C. 7321 
et seq.]. 

SEC. 6. Agency Reporting Requirements. (a) To the ex-
tent permitted by law, each agency shall submit an an-
nual report to OPM on the following: 

(i) The purposes for which the agency has authorized 
the use of taxpayer-funded union time, and the 
amounts of time used for each such purpose; 

(ii) The job title and total compensation of each em-
ployee who has used taxpayer-funded union time in the 
fiscal year, as well as the total number of hours each 
employee spent on these activities and the proportion 
of each employee’s total paid hours that number rep-
resents; 

(iii) If the agency has allowed labor organizations or 
individuals on taxpayer-funded union time the free or 
discounted use of government property, the total value 
of such free or discounted use; 

(iv) Any expenses the agency paid for activities con-
ducted on taxpayer-funded union time; and 

(v) The amount of any reimbursement paid by the 
labor organizations for the use of government property. 

(b) Agencies shall notify the OPM Labor Relations 
Group established pursuant to the Executive Order en-
titled ‘‘Developing Efficient, Effective, and Cost-Reduc-
ing Approaches to Federal Sector Collective Bargain-
ing’’ of May 25, 2018 [Ex. Ord. No. 13836, 5 U.S.C. 7101 
note], if a bargaining unit’s union time rate exceeds 1 
hour. 

(c) If an agency’s aggregate union time rate (i.e., the 
average of the union time rates in each agency bargain-
ing unit, weighted by the number of employees in each 
unit) has increased overall from the last fiscal year, the 
agency shall explain this increase in the report re-
quired under subsection (a) of this section. 

(d) The OPM Director shall set a date by which agen-
cy submissions under this section are due. 

SEC. 7. Public Disclosure and Transparency. (a) Within 
180 days of the date of this order, the OPM Director 
shall publish a standardized form that each agency 
shall use in preparing the reports required by section 6 
of this order. 

(b) OPM shall analyze the agency submissions under 
section 6 of this order and produce an annual report de-
tailing: 

(i) for each agency and for agencies in the aggregate, 
the number of employees using taxpayer-funded union 
time, the number of employees using taxpayer-funded 
union time separately listed by intervals of the propor-
tion of paid time spent on such activities, the number 
of hours spent on taxpayer-funded union time, the cost 
of taxpayer-funded union time (measured by the com-
pensation of the employees involved), the aggregate 
union time rate, the number of bargaining unit employ-
ees, and the percentage change in each of these values 
from the previous fiscal year; 

(ii) for each agency and in the aggregate, the value of 
the free or discounted use of any government property 
the agency has provided to labor organizations, and 
any expenses, such as travel or per diems, the agency 
paid for activities conducted on taxpayer-funded union 
time, as well as the amount of any reimbursement paid 
for such use of government property, and the percent-
age change in each of these values from the previous 
fiscal year; 

(iii) the purposes for which taxpayer-funded union 
time was granted; and 

(iv) the information required by section 6(a)(ii) of 
this order for employees using taxpayer-funded union 
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time, sufficiently aggregated that such disclosure 
would not unduly risk disclosing information protected 
by law, including personally identifiable information. 

(c) The OPM Director shall publish the annual report 
required by this section by June 30 of each year. The 
first report shall cover fiscal year 2019 and shall be pub-
lished by June 30, 2020. 

(d) The OPM Director shall, after consulting with the 
Chief Human Capital Officers designated under chapter 
14 of title 5, United States Code [5 U.S.C. 1401 et seq.], 
promulgate any additional guidance that may be nec-
essary or appropriate to assist the heads of agencies in 
complying with the requirements of this order. 

SEC. 8. Implementation and Renegotiation of Collective 

Bargaining Agreements. (a) Each agency shall implement 
the requirements of this order within 45 days of the 
date of this order, except for subsection 4(b) of this 
order, which shall be effective for employees at an 
agency when such agency implements the procedure re-
quired by section 5(b) of this order, to the extent per-
mitted by law and consistent with their obligations 
under collective bargaining agreements in force on the 
date of this order. The head of each agency shall des-
ignate an official within the agency tasked with ensur-
ing implementation of this order, and shall report the 
identity of such official to OPM within 30 days of the 
date of this order. 

(b) Each agency shall consult with employee labor 
representatives about the implementation of this 
order. On the earliest date permitted by law, and to ef-
fectuate the terms of this order, any agency that is 
party to a collective bargaining agreement that has at 
least one provision that is inconsistent with any part 
of this order shall give any contractually required no-
tice of its intent to alter the terms of such agreement 
and either reopen negotiations and negotiate to obtain 
provisions consistent with this order, or subsequently 
terminate such provision and implement the require-
ments of this order, as applicable under law. 

SEC. 9. General Provisions. (a) Nothing in this order 
shall abrogate any collective bargaining agreement in 
effect on the date of this order. 

(b) Nothing in this order shall be construed to inter-
fere with, restrain, or coerce any employee in the exer-
cise by the employee of any right under chapter 71 of 
title 5, United States Code, or encourage or discourage 
membership in any labor organization by discrimina-
tion in connection with hiring, tenure, promotion, or 
other conditions of employment. 

(c) Nothing in this order shall be construed to impair 
or otherwise affect the authority granted by law to an 
executive department or agency, or the head thereof. 

(d) This order shall be implemented consistent with 
applicable law and subject to the availability of appro-
priations. 

(e) This order is not intended to, and does not, create 
any right or benefit, substantive or procedural, enforce-
able at law or in equity by any party against the 
United States, its departments, agencies, or entities, 
its officers, employees, or agents, or any other person. 

(f) If any provision of this order, including any of its 
applications, is held to be invalid, the remainder of this 
order and all of its other applications shall not be af-
fected thereby. 

DONALD J. TRUMP. 

§ 7132. Subpenas 

(a) Any member of the Authority, the General 
Counsel, or the Panel, any administrative law 
judge appointed by the Authority under section 
3105 of this title, and any employee of the Au-
thority designated by the Authority may— 

(1) issue subpenas requiring the attendance 
and testimony of witnesses and the production 
of documentary or other evidence from any 
place in the United States; and 

(2) administer oaths, take or order the tak-
ing of depositions, order responses to written 

interrogatories, examine witnesses, and re-
ceive evidence. 

No subpena shall be issued under this section 
which requires the disclosure of intra-
management guidance, advice, counsel, or train-
ing within an agency or between an agency and 
the Office of Personnel Management. 

(b) In the case of contumacy or failure to obey 
a subpena issued under subsection (a)(1) of this 
section, the United States district court for the 
judicial district in which the person to whom 
the subpena is addressed resides or is served 
may issue an order requiring such person to ap-
pear at any designated place to testify or to 
produce documentary or other evidence. Any 
failure to obey the order of the court may be 
punished by the court as a contempt thereof. 

(c) Witnesses (whether appearing voluntarily 
or under subpena) shall be paid the same fee and 
mileage allowances which are paid subpenaed 
witnesses in the courts of the United States. 

(Added Pub. L. 95–454, title VII, § 701, Oct. 13, 
1978, 92 Stat. 1214.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 90 days after Oct. 13, 1978, see sec-
tion 907 of Pub. L. 95–454, set out as an Effective Date 
of 1978 Amendment note under section 1101 of this title. 

§ 7133. Compilation and publication of data 

(a) The Authority shall maintain a file of its 
proceedings and copies of all available agree-
ments and arbitration decisions, and shall pub-
lish the texts of its decisions and the actions 
taken by the Panel under section 7119 of this 
title. 

(b) All files maintained under subsection (a) of 
this section shall be open to inspection and re-
production in accordance with the provisions of 
sections 552 and 552a of this title. 

(Added Pub. L. 95–454, title VII, § 701, Oct. 13, 
1978, 92 Stat. 1215.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 90 days after Oct. 13, 1978, see sec-
tion 907 of Pub. L. 95–454, set out as an Effective Date 
of 1978 Amendment note under section 1101 of this title. 

§ 7134. Regulations 

The Authority, the General Counsel, the Fed-
eral Mediation and Conciliation Service, the As-
sistant Secretary of Labor for Labor Manage-
ment Relations, and the Panel shall each pre-
scribe rules and regulations to carry out the 
provisions of this chapter applicable to each of 
them, respectively. Provisions of subchapter II 
of chapter 5 of this title shall be applicable to 
the issuance, revision, or repeal of any such rule 
or regulation. 

(Added Pub. L. 95–454, title VII, § 701, Oct. 13, 
1978, 92 Stat. 1215.) 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

Section effective 90 days after Oct. 13, 1978, see sec-
tion 907 of Pub. L. 95–454, set out as an Effective Date 
of 1978 Amendment note under section 1101 of this title. 

§ 7135. Continuation of existing laws, recogni-
tions, agreements, and procedures 

(a) Nothing contained in this chapter shall 
preclude— 


		Superintendent of Documents
	2019-09-20T15:04:50-0400
	US GPO, Washington, DC 20401
	Superintendent of Documents
	GPO attests that this document has not been altered since it was disseminated by GPO




